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MISSION

We are committed to bene�t our members

by providing them competitive price for the milk 

supplied and services to increase milk productivity 

as well as reduce cost of milk production.

We are vibrant producer company known for 

providing quality milk and milk products

to consumers, through our committed and 

motivated employees.
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VISION 2025

Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited

will be among the top 10 Dairy Enterprises

in the Country.

VALUES

Transparency

Quality in every aspect

Innovation

Honesty & Accountability

Trust & Team work

Passion for Excellence

Goal driven
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Dear Associated Member,

I deem it an honour to present you the company’s annual report for 

the �scal year 2019-20. With pride I wish to share key highlights of the 

year gone by and with pleasure I present the milestones we aim to 

pass going forward.

It’s been our endeavour to deepen our expertise in the dairy sector 

and develop the participation of women membership. Our trust in our 

women members is continuing to yield us rich rewards. Our penchant 

for innovation and interventions is helping us reach new goals.

Our unwavering belief in collective spirit is making us a model 

corporate citizen.

We remain committed to the emancipation of rural women and to 

take them along on our never-ending journey.  After all, behind every 

success of Shreeja, are a thousand Shreejas!

“I believe that self-con�dence of a woman is key role for better 

economic empowerment”

In my ideology “SHREEJA MEMBER

means CONFIDENCE”

Chairman’s Message
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Respected members,

I am as much delighted as I am proud to share with you our key 

achievements and accolades in this annual report. Our company 

continues to evolve as it blazes new trails and breaches new vistas. We 

continue to be guided by the values that we cherish, in our travel to 

the vision that we endeavour to reach by 2025.

The company has achieved a CAGR of 12.3% and 17.3% in 

procurement and turnover over the last 5 years. These numbers are a 

re�ection of our unstinted e�orts in uplifting our members and in 

upthrusting our dairy business through their lively contributions. Our 

relentless focus to better milk production, ensure healthy animals, 

maintain good animal breeding and nutrition has resulted in humane 

animal treatment and care. We shall remain committed to bringing 

global best practices in the �elds of vaccination, health camps and 

o�ering cutting-edge AI services and cattle insurance facilities with 

like-minded agents.

With clarity in our vision, constancy in our values and creativity in our 

approach, we wish to make Shreeja one of India’s most trusted brands. 

We have in place the platform to stand, the policies to guide and the 

personnel to drive the brand. We aim to be there by 2025. Or 

With constant and sustainable progress and I am honoured to state 

that we are working hard to build “Shreeja” brand.

“I believe that with constant support of our committed members who 

supplies quality milk to the company and selling tasty milk and milk 

products to our customers  by building the brand image of ‘Shreeja’, we 

will reach our goal by 2025”.

In my ideology “SHREEJA

means TRUST BUILDER IN THIS

CHANGING WORLD”

Chief Executive’s Message
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It’s never easy being a farmer in India. From untimely 

rains to marginal land holdings, from droughts to 

debts, farmers have had a charmed existence. More so 

in dry districts like Chittoor and Ananthapur in Andhra 

Pradesh. The saving grace has been dairy that has 

helped farmers in the absence of a regular agricultural 

income.

Yet, dairy has not been all hunky dory. It’s been 

plagued with low milk production due to inadequate 

nutrition, small scale of operations, lack of proper 

information, poor communication linkages with wider 

marketers coupled with rampant exploitation by 

intermediaries.

A ray of hope to lighten up farmers’ darkness 

manifested in the arrival of National Dairy 

Development Board (NDDB). Through NDS, they 

promoted a new form of collectives called Milk 

Producer Company (MPC) under Part IXA of the 

Companies Act, 1956 to address the challenges faced 

by the small and marginal farmers, especially those to 

do with technological advancements, and e�cient 

inputs and markets.

This initiative led to the formation of The Shreeja 

Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited (SMMPCL).

It commenced operations in drought-prone 

Ananthapur and Chittoor districts in 2014. 

Shreeja was formed to uplift our rural womenfolk and 

to ensure their quality of life be�ts their hardworking 

nature. The primary emphasis was on ensuring a fair 

price for the farmers and quality milk and milk 

products for consumers at comfortable prices. Shreeja 

not only o�ers fair prices for the farmers but prompt 

payments as well that’s timely, transparent and direct 

into their bank accounts. 

Shreeja has showcased the fact that dairy can be 

commercially viable livelihood option in drought areas 

for small and marginal farmers by eliminating 

middleman and ensuring transparency. Shreeja 

practices best in class practices and provides milk 

producers with integral animal productivity 

enhancement services like Ration Balancing Program 

(RBP), enabling convergence of milk pooling, 

improved animal nutrition, higher conception rates 

and genetically improved animals.

Success breeds success, as they say, and Shreeja’s 

success has helped us widen our scope and augment 

our coverage to include Nellore and Cuddapah too. 

Moreover, Shreeja has penetrated deeply by adding 

new MPPs and strengthening the automated 

collection systems in more than 3,100 milk pooling 

points, procuring 4.02 litres of milk per day from 

76,000 women milk producers.

Within a brief time, Shreeja has notched up 

noteworthy numbers and has realized revenue of 

Rs.537 crore. This has been the result of strong 

leadership and sincere working of all our producer 

members and other stakeholders. 

The community owned business model has not only 

provided opportunity to upscale the dairy subsector, 

but has also enabled women to earn better income 

and respect in the society. Shreeja would continue to 

thrive in the love and care of thousands of rural 

mothers and live in the hearts and homes of 

thousands of happy customers.

A Story Called Shreeja
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A Story of Milk Procurement    
Shreeja commenced its journey with 2,178 Milk 

Pooling Points (MPP). Over the years it has travelled 

wide and added 922 new MPPs. As of end March 2020, 

Shreeja has successfully procured milk from its 

producer members in 3,100 MPPs. One of the major 

interventions of Shreeja is to ensure fair and 

transparent milk procurement at every level of the 

dairy value chain and to provide prompt payments to 

producer members directly into their bank accounts. 

Shreeja’s interventions have safeguarded hygiene 

levels across the entire value chain and has resulted in 

freshness in quality and fairness in quantity. Moreover, 

organized capacity building programs to Sahayaks has 

ensured cleanliness and procuring milk in the fair 

manner as per the SOPs. 

During the year, although Shreeja faced challenging 

factors like higher milk procurement prices by 

competitors, it was able to procure an average of 

4.02 lakh litres of milk per day from its producer 

members. The company endeavoured to ensure safety 

of members by making empathy calls and has helped 

resolve member issues. All these have resulted in 

higher milk procurement and heightened 

membership. 

Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited Annual Report 2019 - 2012
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“Shreeja efforts in capacity 

building to strengthen the member 

participation and enhance 

leadership abilities has bought 

confidence in thousands of rural 

women dairy farmers”

Revenue Rupee Distribution (%) FY 2019-20
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Producer Institution Building aims to build a platform 

for its members through the member-centric 

approach and good governance. The e�orts will result 

in an increase in active membership and enhanced 

business bene�ts.

PIB activities di�erentiate us from other players by its 

transparent governance system and member’s equity 

that’s proportionate to their pouring patronage. The 

ownership rests with members, who are the ultimate 

policy makers. Shreeja strengthens women 

empowerment through their inclusion in the system.

Two informal groups namely Village Contact Group 

(VCG) and Member Relation Group (MRG) were 

formed for the members who were consistent in 

supplying milk to Milk Producer Company (MPC). 

These groups facilitate e�ective two-way 

communication channel between members and MPC. 

These informal groups aim to build relationship, 

resolve grievances, sensitize members on 

organizational operations and to create a sense of 

responsibility and belongingness.

A Story of Competence Building

a. For Board of Directors:

Company has organized di�erent programs for Board 

of Directors with the support of NDDB Dairy Services 

(NDS) like New Board Member Induction Programme, 

Financial modules and Workshop on Leadership 

through Policy Governance.

b. For Members, VCG and MRG members:

Various awareness training programmes about 

company activities like Clean Milk Production, 

Leadership Development Programme and Women 

Awareness Programme have been initiated.

A Story of Producer Institution Building (PIB)
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Shreeja helps improve production and reproduction 

of animals by o�ering superior animal nutrition 

through Shreeja cattle feed and Speci�c Mineral 

Mixture. This has not only improved milk production 

but has also reduced feed wastage and costs. 

Poor feeding practices and diseases in animals 

decrease productivity and increase �nancial burden of 

dairy farmers. E�orts have been made to increase the 

productivity and productive e�ciency of dairy animals 

by appropriating the available feed resources and use 

of area speci�c mineral mixture by reducing the cost 

of milk production. Steps have been initiated to 

ensure producer members understand the 

implications of imbalanced feeding and recognize the 

importance of giving balanced ration to their animals.

a. Health Camps:

Health camps are organized with an objective to assist 

producer members to adopt good management 

practices and more focus on disease prevention rather 

than veterinary treatment expenses. 

The key interventions followed 
during FY 2019-20 include:

• Controlling Mastitis-By CMT & Teat Dip Solution

• Use Ethno Veterinary Medicines (EVM) for   

 treatment

• Ration Balancing Program and AI services

• Deworming and Vaccination

b. Arti�cial Insemination (AI): 

To increase the production and quality of milk, AI 

services were extended at producer member’s 

doorsteps using top genetics available in the country. 

This has resulted in superior calves,improved 

conception rate, reduced inter calving interval and 

increased productive life of the animal.

c. Ethno Veterinary Medicines 
(EVMs):

Ethno Veterinary Medicine programs are conducted at 

the village level with an objective to provide low-cost 

treatment against chronic animal diseases for 

example, oedema of udder, mastitis etc. through 

traditional herbs and indigenous medical plants.

A Story of Ration Balancing Programme (RBP)

15

Shreeja helps improve production and reproduction 

of animals by o�ering superior animal nutrition 

through Shreeja cattle feed and Speci�c Mineral 

Mixture. This has not only improved milk production 

but has also reduced feed wastage and costs. 

Poor feeding practices and diseases in animals 

decrease productivity and increase �nancial burden of 

dairy farmers. E�orts have been made to increase the 

productivity and productive e�ciency of dairy animals 

by appropriating the available feed resources and use 

of area speci�c mineral mixture by reducing the cost 

of milk production. Steps have been initiated to 

ensure producer members understand the 

implications of imbalanced feeding and recognize the 

importance of giving balanced ration to their animals.

a. Health Camps:

Health camps are organized with an objective to assist 

producer members to adopt good management 

practices and more focus on disease prevention rather 

than veterinary treatment expenses. 

The key interventions followed 
during FY 2019-20 include:

• Controlling Mastitis-By CMT & Teat Dip Solution

• Use Ethno Veterinary Medicines (EVM) for   

 treatment

• Ration Balancing Program and AI services

• Deworming and Vaccination

b. Arti�cial Insemination (AI): 

To increase the production and quality of milk, AI 

services were extended at producer member’s 

doorsteps using top genetics available in the country. 

This has resulted in superior calves,improved 

conception rate, reduced inter calving interval and 

increased productive life of the animal.

c. Ethno Veterinary Medicines 
(EVMs):

Ethno Veterinary Medicine programs are conducted at 

the village level with an objective to provide low-cost 

treatment against chronic animal diseases for 

example, oedema of udder, mastitis etc. through 

traditional herbs and indigenous medical plants.

A Story of Ration Balancing Programme (RBP)



Shreeja has adapted use of IT in most functional areas 

- from milk procurement which is automated by 

deploying DPUs, Analysers and weighing scales to 

implementing auto milk collection and sending sales 

data to HO with GPRS. In FY 2019-20, IT operations 

were further streamlined by enhancing the features of 

Milknet (Central server) for integrating the data to SAP 

automatically. SMS with milk collection details to 

Palamithra is being sent daily. Provision for sending 

SMS to pourer is developed.  

Achievements in 2019-20

1) Creating/Updating IT Policy and implementing   

 ITGC and Policy Governance.

2) Development and implementation of cattle feed  

 portal.

3) Implementation of asset management software,  

 integrating the same with Android application and  

 introducing QR code scanning of assets in the   

 software.

4) Planning and implementing the safety stock   

 maintenance, setting of reorder level and creating  

 the auto purchase requisition in SAP.

5) Implemented a chat bot (Shreeja girl) in our   

 website for sales enquiries.

A Story of Information Technology (IT)
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Shreeja is planning to implement android-based 

consumer sales mobile application, sales indent 

mobile app, mobile app for �eld technicians to handle 

complaints, new tool for business analytics and 

document management application for pourer 

forms.These technology-driven functions generate 

timely and reliable MIS, facilitating quick 

decision-making. We will continue to invest in 

advanced technologies to reduce cost and usher 

e�ciency in operations with requisite controls.

We steadfastly believe in the overall development of 

the employees. While physical assets can get 

depreciated over time, the skills and ability of the 

human assets can only appreciate. Our periodical 

training programmes for employees upgrade their 

skills and their selves.

Our HODs attended 3-week Leadership Development 

Programme organized by IRMA, Gujarat and 5-day 

Strategic Development training at ASCI, Hyderabad. 

We also conducted 25 di�erent programs to the 

managerial and executive sta� - both by in-house sta� 

and by external trainers from NDDB (Bangalore), IRMA 

(Gujarat) and NDDB Dairy Services (New Delhi).

Shreeja also accords utmost importance to the health 

of its employees and hence, organized periodic health 

check-up programmes. Several employees were 

prescribed precautionary medication too.

A Continuing Saga Called Shreeja



Shreeja has expanded its scope of operations and has 

launched our products in Chennai and Hyderabad. 

We have also strengthened rural markets while 

focusing on urban ones. We have introduced milk and 

milk products in Reliance, Hyderabad and also are 

now available in a range of big modern trade chains 

like Mega More and many more.

We have also launched a range of milk products this 

year – Paneer, Lassi, Yoghurt and Mishti doi. Plans are 

afoot to relaunch Flavoured milk. Plans to launch Milk 

sweets and other products are on the anvils.

Shreeja continues to aggressively market its brands as 

has been evident by a surfeit of marketing activities 

like free samples, door-to-door campaigns, 

Merchandising activities and many more.

We have tied up with KOF, Chitradurga (Regional Oil 

Seed Growers Federation Ltd) and have successfully 

launched ghee in Chitradurga, Bellary, Tumkur and 

Davanagere districts in Karnataka. We are currently 

negotiating with KOF for our expansion in Bangalore 

too. Other such initiatives and exploring of new 

markets are being currently discussed.

Branding strategy is the vital clog in the Shreeja wheel. 

As part of our well-orchestrated brand strategy, we 

have been advertising in FM Radio and Act Channels. 

We have also unleashed a range of Point-of-Sale 

Materials (POSM) like Umbrellas, Calendars, Stickers, 

Backlit boards etc. We have designed and developed a 

unique kiosk to dispense our products and the same is 

being erected in multiple consumer contact points. 

We would be opening exclusive Shreeja parlours in 

various markets to make our products as much visible 

as they are available to all and sundry.

The journey of Shreeja has begun in right earnest. 

Fasten your seat belts and get set for a rollicking ride! 

A Story of Expansion
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Shreeja has expanded its scope of operations and has 

launched our products in Chennai and Hyderabad. 

We have also strengthened rural markets while 

focusing on urban ones. We have introduced milk and 

milk products in Reliance, Hyderabad and also are 

now available in a range of big modern trade chains 

like Mega More and many more.

We have also launched a range of milk products this 

year – Paneer, Lassi, Yoghurt and Mishti doi. Plans are 

afoot to relaunch Flavoured milk. Plans to launch Milk 

sweets and other products are on the anvils.

Shreeja continues to aggressively market its brands as 

has been evident by a surfeit of marketing activities 

like free samples, Door-to-door campaigns, 

Merchandising activities and many more.

We have tied up with KOF, Chitradurga (Regional Oil 

Seed Growers Federation Ltd) and have successfully 

launched ghee in Chitradurga, Bellary, Tumkur and 

Davanagere districts in Karnataka. We are currently 

negotiating with KOF for our expansion in Bangalore 

too. Other such initiatives and exploring of new 

markets are being currently discussed.

Branding strategy is the vital clog in the Shreeja wheel. 

As part of our well-orchestrated brand strategy, we 

have been advertising in FM Radio and Act Channels. 

We have also unleashed a range of Point-of-Sale 

Materials (POSM) like Umbrellas, Calendars, Stickers, 

Backlit boards etc. We have designed and developed a 

unique kiosk to dispense our products and the same is 

being erected in multiple consumer contact points. 

We would be opening exclusive Shreeja parlours in 

various markets to make our products as much visible 

as they are available to all and sundry.

The journey of Shreeja has begun in right earnest. 

Fasten your seat belts and get set for a rollicking ride! 

A Story of Expansion
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Progress Over The Years:
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(in Crore Ltr.)

Procurement (CAGR 12.3%)

9.32
9.54 10.1

12.6

14.5

Turn over (CAGR 17.3%)

(Rs. in Crores)

284 302
345

415

537
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Progress Over The Years:

No. of Members (CAGR 7.7%)

56,640
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Share capital (CAGR 40.7%)

12.39

6.39
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Progress Over The Years:

Profit Before Tax (CAGR 14.5%)
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“I couldn’t manage my family with two cows. Someone 
told me about Shreeja and I joined them. They taught me 
how to take care of my cows and helped me learn proper 
nutrition and rearing practices. They were proper and 
prompt with payments and I was able to educate my son. 
Today he is a software engineer in Chennai and when he 
visits me, he helps me with my cows.
 
I am proud of my son.
He hasn’t forgotten his roots or his cows!”

                                        

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Name: Sugiamma 
Place: Kodigutta, Yadamari Mandal, Chittoor Dist.

“My son is a software engineer.

He also helps me with my cows”

Good mornings
begin with



The Directors are pleased to present before you their Sixth Annual Report on the operations of the Company 

along with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2020.

The Company was incorporated on 03rd July 2014 as a Producer Company under the provisions of Part IXA of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable in the State of Andhra Pradesh to 

undertake the business of pooling, purchasing, processing of milk of the Members, marketing of the same and to 

deal in activities that are part of or incidental to any activity related thereto.

We are pleased to inform that during the year under review, the Company has achieved a turnover of Rs.53,789.63 

Lakh as against Rs. 41,588.24 Lakh in the previous year.

During the year under review, the total revenue generated was Rs. 53,789.63 Lakh, which includes other incomes 

earned of Rs. 234.03 Lakh. The total expenses incurred were Rs.53,295.04 Lakh against Rs. 40,956.70 Lakh of 

previous year. Total expenses of Rs. 53,295.04 Lakh including material expenses of Rs. 48,402.56 Lakh and �nancial 

expenses of Rs. 596.05 Lakh and depreciation and amortisation expense of Rs. 399.63 Lakh. This has resulted a 

pro�t before tax (PBT) of Rs. 494.60 Lakh and net pro�t after tax (PAT) of Rs. 377.27 Lakh.

SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The summarized Financial Results are as under:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

 (Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

 

Total Revenue 53,789.63 41,588.24

Total Expenses 53,295.04 40,956.70

Pro�t/(Loss) for the period before tax 494.60 631.54

Tax Expenses 117.32 212.45

Pro�t/(Loss) for the period after tax 377.27 419.09
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Limited Return (Dividend)

The Board of Directors are pleased to recommend 

limited return (dividend) at the rate of Rs. 7/- (Rupees 

Seven only) per equity share absorbing

Rs. 1,19,78,365/-. The limited return (dividend) will be 

paid to those members, whose names appear in the 

Register of Members of the Company as on

31st March 2020.

Transfer to General Reserve 

Pursuant to provisions of article no 11.10 of the 

Articles of Association of the Company read with 

Section 581ZI of the Companies Act 1956, the Board 

proposes to transfer Rs. 257.49 Lakh to the credit of 

General Reserve in the Balance Sheet.

Procurement of Milk

During the year 2019-20, 511 New MPPs and 5,983 

active pouring members were added, so our volume 

grown by 15.7% over last year, we procured 14.78 

crore Kgs of raw milk (with an average of 4.05 Lakh Kgs 

Per day) 48,496 members, which accounts to 59% of 

total members. During the year, 9 New BMCUs started 

– 3 in Chittoor, 2 each in Ananthapur and Nellore, 

1 each in Cuddapah and Tamil Nadu as a part of 

expansion plan to ful�l the objectives and vision of 

the Company. This year we extended Veterinary 

services to the members and conducted around 650 

health camps, recommended the members good 

feeding practices and demonstrated ethno-veterinary 

practices for controlling/ curing the diseases. We 

continue to pay competitive prices to our members 

for the milk procured. 

Producer Institution Building (PIB) 

Producer Institution Building aims to build a platform 

for its members through the member centric 

approach and good governance. The e�orts are being 

made to increase in active membership which would 

be leading to proliferation in business aspects.

PIB activities di�erentiate the producer company from 

the other private players and co-operatives in the 

dairy sector, with its transparent governance system 

and member’s equity, which is proportionate to their 

pouring patronage. The ownership of the organization 

lies with the members, who are ultimately the policy 

makers. Shreeja strengthens women empowerment 

through their inclusion in the system. Further, e�orts 

have been put in by Shreeja for 100% milk payment 

directly in the bank accounts of the members.

A. Strengthening Members Relation: 

 Two informal groups namely- Village Contact   

 Group (VCG) and Member Relation Group (MRG)  

 were formed from among the members of the   

 company who are consistent in supplying milk to  

 Milk Producer Company (MPC) and have given 
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 consent to be a part of these groups voluntarily.   

 These groups facilitate in an e�ective two-way   

 communication channel between members and  

 MPC. The aim of these informal groups is to build  

 relations, resolve grievances, sensitize members on  

 operation of the organization and create a sense of  

 responsibility and belongingness among them. 

 VCG and MRG members meet to discuss and   

 review the progress of the MPP and share   

 developments with the members. These meetings  

 are facilitated by PIB team to strengthen the   

 governance system. In 19-20, 1861 MRG’s were   

 identi�ed and oriented whereas in 1875 MPP’s VCG  

 meetings were conducted regularly to bring in   

 synergy in operations and better governance at   

 the ground level.

B. Member Enrollment and Information Sharing  

 with Members: The process of enrolling members  

 starts with the collection of documents and the   

 allotment of unique member code for each   

 member, which enables to access to all the   

 services provided by the company. Shreeja shares  

 all member related information either through   

 hard copy or soft copy and the information is   

 conveyed by the �eld supervisor at MPP premises.  

 This has immensely bene�ted members as they   

 get timely information pertaining milk poured,   

 deductions, if any and net payment which helps in  

 enhancing the transparency in operations.

C. Leadership Development Program (LDP):   

 Potential members identi�ed during the capacity  

 building programs have attended the LDP to   

 improve their interpersonal and leadership skills.  

 This program emphasized on empowering women  

 and also provide them with an opportunity to   

 nominate their names for the Board of Directors   

 positions. During FY 2019-20, we have trained 60  

 members from three clusters namely-    

 Madanapalle, Chittoor and Kuppam.

D. Women Empowerment: Shreeja continues its   

 emphasis on enhancing the participation of   

 women members through following initiatives –

• In the year 2019-20, 2,519 Women Awareness   

 programs were conducted throughout the year,   

 where women participate to understand about   

 their company

• Shreeja communicates the role of women in every  

 meeting and forum to emphasize on the   

 importance of women in dairy sector

• 47,728 members participated in these awareness  

 programs conducted by the organization 

Name of the Program No. of No. of
 Programs Participants
  / MPP’s

Village Contact Groups (VCG) 1,875 3,667

Member Relation Group (MRG) 104 1,436

Leadership Development Programs (LDP) 3 60

Women Awareness Program (WAP) 2,159 47,728
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Moving further, the Board members were given 

training on Policy Governance (implemented two 

categories of policies) and Finance Modules during 

the Financial Year. 

Ration Balancing Programme (RBP)

Ration Balancing Programme (RBP) aims to improve 

production and reproduction of animals through 

adoption of scienti�c method of feeding with provi-

sion of technical inputs and services to milk producers 

at their door step, thereby   improving milk production 

e�ciency and economic return from dairying.

The productivity data of di�erent categories of 

animals and the prevailing feeding practice in area 

suggest that the productivity of animal is not at par 

with their genetic potential, which is mainly due to 

imbalanced feeding. Ration balancing advisory 

services in the project area will help in improving the 

productivity and productive e�ciency of dairy animals 

by appropriating the available feed resources and use 

of areaspeci�c mineral mixture which will also help in 

bringing down the cost of milk production.

As a result of RBP services, pourers got awareness on 

Cattle Feed and Mineral Mixture usage resulting in 

improving productivity and quality of the delivered 

product.

Cattle feed consumption is increased from 4,400 

MT/Year (2015-16) to 16,515MT /Year (2019-2020)

Feed consumption/Ltr of milk is increased from47 

Grams -115 Grams/Ltr

Mineral Mixture consumption is increased from 

1.4MT/Year (2015-16) to 32.1MT/Year (2019-20)

In addition to the Ration Balancing Programme, the 

Company is also providing value added services like

• AI services 

• Cattle & Member Insurance

• Other Input Services

• Animal Health Camps

• Sub Clinical Mastitis tests

• EVM practices to control di�erent cattle diseases.

Sales & Marketing

The Company launched Cow Ghee under “ShreejaDai-

vika” brand, �avoured milk under “Shreeja Cheers” 

brand and also launched Shreeja Thick & Tasty Curd in 

1 and 5 kg packs. 

During the �nancial year, our Company reported 

healthy revenue growth sale of 28392, LPD of Milk, 

Curd and Buttermilk against the sale of 20575, LPD in 

2018-19 i.e., about 45% growth in volume despite 

having challenging environment. Company expanded 

to new markets such as Dharmavaram, Hindupur, 

Penukonda, Bathalapalli, Lepakshi and other markets 

under Kadiri territory. We had also launched milk in 

Chennai market with good appreciation

of products by the consumers.
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The Company’s sales and marketing team engages in 

a variety of marketing and promotional activities 

addressing di�erent consumer groups. To reach out to 

consumers, we advertised in Red FM Radio and ACT 

Channel in Tirupati & Nellore.

Developed designs for various Point of Sale (POS) 

materials such as Streamers, Danglers apart from the 

existing ones and started installing in the market to 

create awareness for Shreeja brand. Consumer o�ers 

did through in shop and home to home campaigns to 

generate consumer trials for our brand. 

Quality Assurance

Quality Assurance has played vital role in deploying 

e�ective and scienti�c quality screening test methods 

across MPP, BMC and MCC levels in order to improve 

the raw milk quality in terms of fat /SNF and 

MBRT(Methylene Blue Reduction Test). 

Quality Assurance has proposed better CIP (Clean In 

Place) systems with hot water facility across BMCUs to 

improve MBRTof raw milk and food safety.

QA Department has conducted in house trainings to 

all concerned on Clean Milk Production, Good 

Manufacturing Practices and Good Hygienic practices. 

Deployed Cold Sanitization with formulated cleaning 

and sanitizers (Diversey) at selected BMCUs to 

improve MBRT and wholesomeness of milk.

New initiatives taken to group all BMCUs into Four 

Clusters for better quality accountability and 

monitoring. 

Round the time quality monitoring to ensure 

adulteration free and Antibiotic free milk using Rapid 

Testing kits of Adulterants (Delmos), Antibiotics.

Information Technology (IT)

Our Company has adapted information technology 

(IT) in most of its functional areas, from the 

procurement of milk to the Sales of Milk & Milk 

Products. In FY 2019-20, IT operations were further 

streamlined by introducing some Android based 

mobile applications and enhancing some more 

features in Milknet and SAP to serve the members fast 

and accurately.

Operations

We have implemented an Android based mobile 

consumer application for subscribing our milk and 

milk products on monthly basis which is delivered 

freely to our consumers. Initially we have launched our 

services in Tirupati city. Household consumers can also 

make one time orders of our milk and milk products. 

This application is developed to provide extreme 

convenience and comfort of getting essential milk & 

milk products directly to consumer’s home.
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Further, developed Sales indent application on the 

same platform for Distributors/Agents to place their 

daily indent for milk & milk products. Our Customers 

can place/edit/cancel their indents on this application 

with ease before the cut o� time. It also allows to 

enter their amount of advance payments made so that 

our �nance team can post the entries against their 

accounts.

On the grievance redressal front we were closing the 

ticket at HO level by cross checking with the engineers 

and the complainant. Presently we came up with an 

android based mobile application for all our Field 

Engineers where they can access the tickets assigned 

to them and immediately attend to the 

complaints.After attending to the complaint, they can 

upload the pictures of the equipment in the 

application after the service and close the service 

ticket in the application by taking the signature of the 

complainant. This application has resulted in reducing 

the turned around time to close the tickets in our 

helpdesk. 

Enhanced IMMS,to maintain rate charts MPP wise at 

BMCUs which was not possible in earlier versions. Also 

we are able to operate on two analysers at BMCUs, 

one for bu�alo and one for cow in the present version.

We have successfully completed the required changes 

in SAP to start our sales operation in Chennai. 

Our Sales billing team is now able to post the invoices 

for Chennai plant from our Balaji dairy e�ectively.

Board of Directors

Smt. Bharathi Geddam (DIN: 07501145) and Nirmala 

Thaluri (DIN: 06887354) retired as the Directors of the 

Company with e�ect from 28th September 2019. 

The Board would like to thank them for their 

association and support as directors with the Company.

Pursuant to the Article 9.6 and pursuant to Section 

581ZA and other relevant articles of the Articles of 

Association of the Company and applicable 

provisions, of the Companies Act, 1956, Smt. Kasireddy 

Saraswathi(DIN: 08540593) and Smt. Yerragudi Kavitha 

(DIN: 08540551) were appointed as Directors of the 

Company with e�ect from 28th September 2019.

Smt. Kolla Vijaya (DIN: 07078378) was re-appointed as 

Director in 6th AGM.

Dr. Devanand Chakkingal Pathayapura (DIN: 07773929) 

was appointed as Expert Director of the Company with 

e�ect from 27th June 2019. 

Smt. Varalakshmi Madasu and Smt. Geethanjali Kathi 

were resigned as Directors due to personal reasons 

with e�ect from 06th December 2019 and 28th 

February 2020 respectively.
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Composition of Board of Directors

& reappointment of Directors

Article 9.4 of the Articles of Association of the 

Company deals with determination of criteria for 

categorising members into di�erent classes based on 

their patronage and representation of such classes of 

members on the Board, to the extent possible, based 

on the patronage of members of respective class. The 

criteria for categorizing members into three di�erent 

classes viz., Class-A, Class-B and Class-C based on 

patronage were approved at the �rst AGM of the 

Company.

Based on the analysis of data w.r.t., ful�lment and 

non-ful�lment of patronage criteria by the members 

during FY 2019-20, it has been found that, 47% of the 

total members as on 31st March 2020 have ful�lled all 

the prescribed criteria of patronage of their respective 

class. Accordingly, out of this 47% of the total 

members, 11% comprised of Class – A, 15% 

Comprised Class – B and 21% comprised Class – C. 

Whereas, the proportionate percentages (%) of 

quantity of milk (patronage) supplied by the said Class 

– A, Class – B and Class – C of members amongst 

themselves were respectively 49%, 31% and 20% 

respectively during FY 2019-20. Accordingly, the 

composition of the Board providing for representation 

of each class of members on the Board based on 

patronage of each class of members comes to 5 

directors for Class – A, 4 directors for Class – B and 2 

directors for Class – C respectively. The Board will meet 

the requirement of Article 9.5, as following: - 

Smt.Lavanya Kumari Bojja (DIN: 06881632) 

representing Class – A and Sailaja Kampalle 

(DIN: 06882858) representing Class – B, the Directors 

of the Company will retire at the ensuing AGM of the 

Company, as per Article 9.5 & 9.6 of Articles of 

Association of the Company they do not o�er 

themselves for re-appointment. 

In addition to above two places are vacant due to 

resignation of Smt. Varalakshmi Madasu and

Smt. Geethanjali Kathi. 

In their place, the Nominating Committee has, at its 

meeting held on 27th August 2020, recommended the 

appointment of Smt.N Vanasri (DIN: 08902829), Smt. S 

Saraswathi (DIN: 08903045) and Smt. M Thayaramma 

(DIN: 08905157) representing Class – B, Smt.P Vijaya 

Lakshmi (DIN: 08902806) representing Class – C as 

directors of the Company at the ensuing AGM, who is 

eligible for such appointment in accordance with the 

provisions of the Articles of Association of the 

Company.

This will make the total strength of directors in Class-A 

to 5, Class-B to 4, Class-C to 1 and No Class to 1 

director as permissible under Articles 9.5.i and 9.6.i.
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Accordingly, the Board recommends their 

appointment. The statement containing name and 

quali�cations of each of the four Directors seeking 

appointment is annexed to the Notice convening 7th 

AGM of the Company.

Dr. N V Belavadi (DIN: 01734080) and Dr. Annapurna 

Neti (DIN: 06998090) were re-appointed as Expert 

Directors of the Company for a period of two years 

e�ective from 14th October 2020.  

Number of Board Meetings

Four Board Meetings were held during the year under 

review and the gap between two meetings did not 

exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said 

meetings were held on:

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

Membership/Voting Rights/ Share 

Capital

As at 31st March 2020, the paid up share capital was 

Rs. 17.12 Crore, whereas 76,223 members were 

appearing on the register of members of the 

Company. 

 

After 31st March 2020, Company has enrolled 9,675 

new members, 1,292 members cancelled their 

membership and the total number of members as on 

the date of this report stands at 84,606 members.

To avoid cancellation of membership, all the members 

are hereby requested to ful�l all the patronage criteria 

of their respective class and conditions for 

continuation of membership during the relevant 

�nancial year. 

Voting Rights and attendance at 

AGM

Out of total 76,223 members, 37,896 members have 

voting rights on all the resolutions as set in Annual 

General Meeting notice and 6,626 members, who 

have ful�lled basic condition for voting (i.e., pouring of 

milk for at least 200 days totaling to at least 500 litres 

in a previous �nancial year) but have not ful�lled one 

or more of the patronage criteria of their respective 

class during F.Y. 2019-20, consequently they are not 

entitled to vote on the class based election of 

Directors. Remaining 31,701 members out of which 

membership of 1,210 members have been cancelled 

and 30,491 members did not pour milk for at least 200 

days totaling to at least 500 litres during the previous 

�nancial year 2019-20 and hence not entitled for 

voting rights in 7th AGM.

 Board  Board meeting  No. of Directors
 Meeting No. Date attended

 30 22nd June 2019 13

 31 31st August 2019 14

 32 06th December 2019 14

 33 28th February 2020 12
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New members, who were admitted as members of the 

Company post 31st March 2020, will not be entitled to 

dividend for FY 2019-20 as well as voting right at 7th 

AGM, however they can attend the AGM.

Directors Responsibility Statement 

In accordance with section 217 (2AA) the Board of 

Directors of the Company inform the members that:

a) in the preparation of annual accounts, the   

 applicable accounting standards along with proper  

 explanation have been followed;

b) the directors have selected such accounting   

 policies and applied them consistently and made  

 judgments and estimates that are reasonable and  

 prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the   

 state of a�airs of the Company at the end of the   

 Financial Year and the pro�t for that period; 

c) the directors have taken proper and su�cient care  

 for the maintenance of adequate accounting   

 records in accordance with the provisions of this   

 Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and  

 for preventing and detecting fraud and other   

 irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts  

 on a going concern basis.

Internal Control System 

The Company has in place the proper and adequate 

internal control system, which ensures that all assets 

are safeguarded and protected and the transactions 

are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. 

Pursuant to the Section 581ZF of the Companies Act, 

1956, M/s. Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, 

has been re-appointed as Internal Auditors of the 

company for the FY 2020-21, who independently 

evaluate the adequacy of internal controls, and carry 

out the audit of accounts of the Company. 

Auditors 

M/s S.B. Billimoria & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

Statutory Auditors retire at the ensuing 7th Annual 

General Meeting and being eligible o�ers themselves 

for re-appointment. The Company has received a 

certi�cate from the auditors to the e�ect that their 

reappointment if made, would be in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act.

Your Directors recommend the re-appointment of M/s 

S.B. Billimoria & Co. as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company at the ensuing 7th Annual General Meeting.
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Particulars of Employees 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section217(2A) of the 

Companies Act,1956 read with the Companies 

(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, none of the 

employees were in receipt of remuneration which in 

the aggregate exceeds Rupees Sixty Lakh per annum 

or Rupees Five Lakh per month, as the case may be, 

during the period under review. 

Disclosure under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace 
(Prevention of, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment 

Prevention Policy in line with the requirements of the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up 

to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 

temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

Conservation of Energy, Research 
and Development, Technology 
Absorption, Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and out go

Particulars required to be furnished pursuant to 

Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read 

with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the 

Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988:

(i) Part A and B of the Rules pertaining to    

 Conservation of energy and Technology absorption  

 are presently not applicable to the Company.

(ii) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo: 

 Earnings – Nil; 

 Outgo – Nil.

Way forward

As we are a growing concern and as a part of our 

growth strategy, the Company has planned to carry 

out following projects in the FY 2020-21: 

• Extending the operational area to Kadapa district  

 and few areas in Karnataka and Tamil Nadu in order  

 to support & benefit small and marginal milk   

 producers in line with Shreeja’s objective. 

• Setting up of six Rapid Milk Chilling Units to further  

 improve the shelf life of milk and to reduce the   

 operational cost

• Installing ‘Milko Screens’ in selected BMCUs as a   

 pilot to detect and eliminate adulteration 

• Conducting more animal health camps to educate  

 members to improve immunity of milch animals   

 and enhance productivity. Under cattle insurance  

 and AI programmes, intend to cover more area /   

 animals to benefit the members.
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• Introducing new products like Paneer, Yoghurt,   

 MistiDoi, Lassi etc., and planning to enter into   

 metro markets viz., Chennai & Hyderabad

• We would be partnering with a new SAP support  

 vendor for taking care of our IT operations in SAP,  

 enhancing IT security and leveraging innovative   

 technologies like introducing Robotic Process   

 Automation (RPA) in areas like cattle feed postings  

 and chilling process in SAP to start with. 

• We are also planning to implement multiple   

 Android applications to enhance operational 

 e�ciency in sales, �eld engineering and   

 procurement departments.

• We are planning an android based mobile   

 application for our farmers, so that they can access  

 their pouring and payment details. Members will  

 also have provision to see their share details,   

 pouring pattern, incentives, etc. 

• We are also evaluating HR mantra a HR software to  

 automate the Employee Self Services (ESS),   

 Performance Appraisal System, Payroll, etc.
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“I was a daily wage labourer. I didn’t have a home that 
I could call my own. I had one cow when I joined Shreeja.
I got good rates for the milk I poured. They paid me bonus 
and dividend too. With the money I earned and saved,
I bought this agricultural land.

Shreeja not only gave me a life but piece of land 
that I can now call my own!”

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Good mornings
begin with

Name: Usha Rani
Place: Chitimireddygari Palli, 

B. Kotha Kota Mandal, Chittoor Dist 

“I didn’t have a home.

Today, I own this land” 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying �nancial 

statements of Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company 

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31 March 2020,the Statement of Pro�t and 

Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 

and a summary of signi�cant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

�nancial statements give the information required by 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the Accounting Standards prescribed under 

section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended 

(“Accounting Standards”) and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

a�airs of the Company as at 31March 2020, and its 

pro�t and its cash �ows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the �nancial statements in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing speci�ed 

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit 

of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

�nancial statements under the provisions of the Act 

and the Rules made thereunder, and we have ful�lled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the �nancial statements.

Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

• The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible   

 for the other information. The other information   

 comprises the Director’s Report, but does not   

 include the �nancial statements and our auditor’s   

 report thereon.
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• Our opinion on the �nancial statements does not   

 cover the other information and we do not express  

 any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

• In connection with the audit of the �nancial   

 statements, our responsibility is to read the other   

 information and, in doing so, consider whether the  

 other information is materially inconsistent with the  

 �nancial statements or our knowledge obtained   

 during the course of the audit or otherwise appears  

 to be materially misstated.

• If, based on the work we have performed, we   

 conclude that there is a material misstatement of   

 this other information, we are required to report   

 the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act) with respect to the preparation of these 

�nancial statements that give a true and fair view of 

the �nancial position, �nancial performance and cash 

�ows of the Company in accordance with the 

Accounting Standards and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgements and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

�nancial controls that were operating e�ectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the �nancial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the �nancial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the Company’s �nancial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the �nancial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. 
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to in�uence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these �nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material    

 misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether  

 due to fraud or error, design and perform audit   

 procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain   

 audit evidence that is su�cient and appropriate to  

 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not   

 detecting a material misstatement resulting from  

 fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as  

 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional   

 omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of   

 internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal �nancial   

 control relevant to the audit in order to design   

 audit procedures that are appropriate in the   

 circumstances under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we  

 are also responsible for expressing our opinion on  

 whether the Company has adequate internal   

 �nancial controls system in place and the operating  

 e�ectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies  

 used and the reasonableness of accounting   

 estimates and related disclosures made by the   

 management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s  

 use of the going concern basis of accounting and,  

 based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a  

 material uncertainty exists related to events or   

 conditions that may cast signi�cant doubt on the  

 Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If  

 we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we  

 are required to draw attention in our auditor’s   

 report to the related disclosures in the �nancial   

 statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to  

 modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on  

 the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our  

 auditor’s report. However, future events or   

 conditions may cause the Company to cease to   

 continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and   

 content of the �nancial statements, including the  

 disclosures, and whether the �nancial statements  

 represent the underlying transactions and events in  

 a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to in�uence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these �nancial statements.
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 misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether  
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 procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain   

 audit evidence that is su�cient and appropriate to  

 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not   

 detecting a material misstatement resulting from  

 fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as  

 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional   

 omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of   

 internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal �nancial   

 control relevant to the audit in order to design   

 audit procedures that are appropriate in the   

 circumstances under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we  

 are also responsible for expressing our opinion on  

 whether the Company has adequate internal   

 �nancial controls system in place and the operating  

 e�ectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies  

 used and the reasonableness of accounting   

 estimates and related disclosures made by the   

 management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s  

 use of the going concern basis of accounting and,  

 based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a  

 material uncertainty exists related to events or   

 conditions that may cast signi�cant doubt on the  

 Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

 we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s  

  report to the related disclosures in the �nancial   

 statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to  

 modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on  

 the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our  

 auditor’s report. However, future events or   

 conditions may cause the Company to cease to   

 continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and   

 content of the �nancial statements, including the  

 disclosures, and whether the �nancial statements  

 represent the underlying transactions and events in  

 a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited Annual Report 2019 - 2036 37

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

�nancial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the �nancial 

statements may be in�uenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in 

evaluating the results of our work; and(ii) to evaluate 

the e�ect of any identi�ed misstatements in the 

�nancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with 

governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and signi�cant 

audit �ndings, including any signi�cant de�ciencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 

a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 

that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information  

 and explanations which to the best of our

 knowledge and belief were necessary for the

 purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required  

 by law have been kept by the Company so far as it  

 appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro�t and   

 Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by   

 this Report are in agreement with the books of   

 account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid �nancial statements  

 comply with the Accounting Standards speci�ed  

 under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations   

 received from the directors as on 31 March, 2020  

 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of  

 the directors is disquali�ed as on 31 March, 2020  

 from being appointed as a director in terms of   

 Section 164(2) of the Act.

f ) With respect to the adequacy of the internal   

 �nancial controls over �nancial reporting of the   

 Company and the operating e�ectiveness of such  

 controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. 

 Our report expresses an unmodi�ed opinion on  

 the adequacy and operating e�ectiveness of the  

 Company’s internal �nancial controls over �nancial  

 reporting.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in  

 the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the   

 requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as   

 amended, In our opinion and to the best of our   

 information and according to the explanations   

 given to us, the Company being a private company,  

 section 197 of the Act related to the managerial   

 remuneration not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in  

 the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of  

 the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as  

 amended in our opinion and to the best of our   

 information and according to the explanations   

 given to us:

i. The Company does not have any of pending   

 litigations which would impact its �nancial   

 position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term   

 contracts including derivative contracts for which  

 there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be  

 transferred to the Investor Education and Protetion

  Fund by the Company.

2.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)   

 Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central   

 Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,   

we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters   

speci�ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3.  As required by section 581ZG of the Part IXA of the   

 Companies Act, 1956 (in terms of Section 465 of   

 the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of Part IXA of   

 the Companies Act are applicable to a Producer   

 Company in a manner as if the Companies Act,   

 1956 has not been repealed), we give in 

 “Annexure C” a statement on the matters speci�ed   

 in that Section.

  For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.

  Chartered Accountants

  (Registration No. 101496W)

  Jitendra Agarwal

  Partner

   (Membership No. 87104)

  UDIN: 20087104AAAAFU5833 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 30 September 2020  
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“My family once depended on a small piece of land but I could 
hardly grow anything. I borrowed money to dig 3 borewells yet there 
was no water. I was neck deep in debts and didn’t know what to do. 
Luckily with a little money I bought a cow and joined Shreeja. 
Thanks to their training programmes and cattle feeds I was able to 
earn better and today I am a proud owner of 7 cows.  

I have paid o� all my debts. But I can never repay
my debt of gratitude to Shreeja!”

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Good mornings
begin with

Name: Thota Anasuyamma
Place: Thoopalli, Talupula Mandal,

Ananthapur Dist. 

“I was in deep debts once.

Now I am eternally

indebted to Shreeja”�
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Reports on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal �nancial controls over 

�nancial reporting of Shreeja Mahila MilkProducer 

Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 

2020 in conjunction with our audit of the �nancial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal �nancial 

controls based on the internal control over �nancial 

reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal �nancial controls that were operating 

e�ectively for ensuring the orderly and e�cient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable �nancial 

information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company's internal �nancial controls over �nancial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

(the “Guidance Note”)issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal �nancial controls. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal �nancial controls over �nancial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated e�ectively in all material respects.
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�nancial reporting of Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer 

Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 

2020 in conjunction with our audit of the �nancial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

Management’s Responsibility for 
Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal �nancial 

controls based on the internal control over �nancial 

reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal �nancial controls that were operating 

e�ectively for ensuring the orderly and e�cient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable �nancial 

information, as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company's internal �nancial controls over �nancial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

(the “Guidance Note”)issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal �nancial controls. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal �nancial controls over �nancial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated e�ectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

�nancial controls system over �nancial reporting and 

their operating e�ectiveness. Our audit of internal 

�nancial controls over �nancial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal �nancial 

controls over �nancial reporting, assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 

the design and operating e�ectiveness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

su�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal �nancial 

controls system over �nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal �nancial control over �nancial 

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of �nancial 

reporting and the preparation of �nancial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

�nancial control over �nancial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly re�ect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of �nancial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company's assets that could have a material e�ect on 

the �nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal �nancial 

controls over �nancial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal �nancial 

controls over �nancial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal �nancial control 

over �nancial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the Compa-

ny has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

�nancial controls system over �nancial reporting and 

such internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting 

were operating e�ectively as at

31 March, 2020 based on the internal control over 

�nancial reporting criteria established by the Compa-

ny considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

  For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.

  Chartered Accountants

  (Registration No. 101496W)

  Jitendra Agarwal

  Partner 

  (Membership No. 87104)

  UDIN:20087104AAAAFU5833

Place: New Delhi  

Date:  30 September 2020  

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 

internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were operating effectively as at

31 March, 2020 based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

  For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.

  Chartered Accountants

  (Registration No. 101496W)

  Jitendra Agarwal

  Partner 

  (Membership No. 87104)

  UDIN: 20087104AAAAFU5833

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30 September 2020  
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Reports on Other Legal

and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

i. In respect of its property, plant and equipment:

a) The Company has maintained proper records   

 showing full particulars, including quantitative   

 details and situation of the property, plant and   

 equipment.

b) The property, plant and equipment were physi  

 cally veri�ed during the year by the management  

 in accordance with a regular programme of   

 veri�cation which, in our opinion, provides for   

 physical veri�cation of all the property, plant and  

 equipment at reasonable intervals and no material  

 discrepancies were noticed on such veri�cation.

c) The Company does not have any immovable   

 properties of freehold or leasehold land and   

 building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of  

 the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

ii. In our opinion, the inventories were physically   

 veri�ed during the year by the management at   

 reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies  

 were noticed on physical veri�cation.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured  

 or unsecured, to companies, �rms, Limited Liability  

 Partnerships or other parties covered in the   

 register maintained under section 189 of the   

 Companies Act, 2013.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans, made   

 investments or provided guarantees and hence   

 reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is

 not applicable.

v. In our opinion and according to the information

 and explanations given to us, the Company has

 not accepted any deposits from the public, and

 hence reporting under clause (v) of the CARO 2016

 is not applicable.

vi. Having regard to the nature of the Company’s

 business / activities, reporting under clause of

 CARO 2016 is not applicable.

vii. According to the information and explanations

 given to us and on the basis of the records

 examined by us, in respect of statutory dues:
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a) The Company has generally been regular in

 depositing undisputed statutory dues including

 Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance,

 Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and   

 other material statutory dues applicable to it with  

 the appropriate authorities. The operations of the  

 Company during the year did not give rise to any  

 liability for Customs Duty and Excise Duty.

b) There are no undisputed amounts payable in   

 respect of Provident Fund, Employee's State   

 Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax,   

 Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears  

 as at 31 March, 2020 for a period of more than six  

 months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no dues of Income Tax and Goods and  

 Services Tax as on 31 March, 2020 on account of  

 disputes. The operations of the Company during  

 the year did not give rise to any liability for   

 Customs Duty and Excise Duty.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information  

 and explanations given to us, the Company has   

 not defaulted in the repayment of loans or   

 borrowings to banks, �nancial institutions and   

 government. The Company has not issued any   

 debentures.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of   

 initial public o�er or further public o�er (including  

 debt instruments). In our opinion term loans have  

 been applied by the Company during the year for  

 the purposes for which they were raised.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the  

 information and explanations given to us, no fraud  

 by the Company and no material fraud on the   

 Company by its o�cers or employees has been   

 noticed or reported during the year.

xi. The Company is a private company and hence the  

 provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act,   

 2013 do not apply to the Company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence  

 reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016   

 Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information  

 and explanations given to us the Company is in   

 compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the   

 Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all   

 transactions with the related parties and the   

 details of related party transactions have been   

 disclosed in the �nancial statements etc. as   

 required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. The Company is registered under Chapter IXA of  

 the Companies Act, 1956 and hence reporting   

 under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.
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xiv. The Company is registered under Chapter IXA of   

 the Companies Act, 1956 and hence reporting   

 under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information   

 and explanations given to us, during the year the   

 Company has not entered into any non-cash   

 transactions with its directors or persons   

 connected with him and hence provisions of   

 section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are

 not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered   

 under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

 Act, 1934.

  For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.

  Chartered Accountants

  (Registration No. 101496W)

  Jitendra Agarwal

  Partner 

  (Membership No. 87104)

  UDIN: 20087104AAAAFU5833

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30 September 2020   

   

  

 



ANNEXURE “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Reports on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

i. The amount of debts due from sale of goods and  

 services are as disclosed in Note 18 to the �nancial  

 statements. According to the information and   

 explanations given to us no debts are considered as  

 doubtful of recovery.

ii. According to the information and explanations   

 given to us, cash on hand as at year-end has been  

 physically veri�ed by the management and no   

 discrepancies were noticed on such veri�cation.   

 According to the information and explanations   

 given to us, the Company does not hold any   

 investment securities.

iii. The details of assets and liabilities as at 31 March,  

 2020 are as per the �nancial statements of the   

 Company as at and for the year ended

 31 March, 2020.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information   

 and explanations given to us, the Company has not  

 done any transaction which appears to be contrary  

 to the provisions of part IXA of the Companies

 Act, 1956.

v. According to the information and explanations   

 given to us, the Company has not granted any loan  

 to its directors.

vi. According to the information and explanations   

 given to us, the Company has not given any   

 donations or subscriptions during the year.

  For S. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.

  Chartered Accountants

  (Registration No. 101496W)

  Jitendra Agarwal

  Partner 

  (Membership No. 87104)

  UDIN: 20087104AAAAFU5833

Place: New Delhi  

Date: 30 September 2020  
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Lassi ad

“I had 2 cows and was selling milk to a private dairy. I was not 
earning much. That’s when I heard of Shreeja and became a 
member. They taught me best feeding practices and gave me 
rearing tips. I started earning more and bought 4 more cows. 
Seeing my success, more people from my village joined Shreeja 
and are getting bene�ted. They thank me for inspiring them.

It feels great to have been able to make a di�erence
in their lives!”

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Good mornings
begin with

Name: Revathi
Place: Kondakindapalli,

Veduru Kuppam Mandal, Chittoor Dist. 

“I inspired

hundreds of women

in my village to become

entrepreneurs”



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2020 

      Note   As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

      No. Rupees Rupees

A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   

 1. Shareholders’ funds

  (a) Share capital   3  17,11,19,500  15,52,74,000

  (b) Reserves and surplus 4  11,93,92,584  9,47,68,895

        29,05,12,084  25,00,42,895

 2. Share application money pending allotment    3,19,10,000  48,15,400

  (see note 30)     

 3. Deferred grant  5   13,99,71,526  11,26,42,395

 4. Non - current liabilities    

  (a)  Long - term borrowings 6   1,95,60,000  3,91,20,000

  (b)  Other long-term liabilities 7   6,04,49,363  4,10,26,345

  (c)  Long - term provisions 8  2,14,37,989  1,37,94,043

         10,14,47,352  9,39,40,388

 5. Current liabilities    

  (a)  Short term borrowings 9   84,69,96,279  90,87,04,418

  (b)  Trade payables    

   (i)  "Total outstanding dues of micro and

    small enterprises" 10   20,93,824  48,20,390

   (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other

    than micro and small enterprises 10  25,18,90,360  26,77,94,282

  (c)  Other current liabilities 11   4,36,81,213  14,00,07,911

  (d)  Short - term provisions 12   41,24,251  32,95,557

        1,14,87,85,927  1,32,46,22,558

      Total  1,71,26,26,889  1,78,60,63,636
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See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements         

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
         
For S.B. BILLIMORIA & CO.  Lavanya Kumari Bojja Jayatheertha Chary      
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director & Chief Executive      
           
JITENDRA AGARWAL Vijaya Kolla  
Partner Director  

Place: New Delhi N. Amarendra Babu N. Rajesh  
Date: 30.09.2020  Company Secretary Head Finance & Accounts 
         
  Place: Tirupati   
  Date: 30.09.2020

      Note   As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

      No. Rupees Rupees

B. ASSETS     

  1. Non - current assets    

  (a)  Property, Plant & Equipment    

   (i) Tangible assets 13a   35,05,45,335  28,92,80,829

   (ii) Intangible assets 13b   19,42,197  15,32,357

   (iii) Capital work in progress   -  1,22,29,693

   (iv) Intangible assets under development    -  2,95,000

  (b)  Deferred tax asset  14   62,62,471  29,80,916

  (c)  Long-term loans and advances 15   53,56,080  45,74,023

  (d)  Other non-current assets 16   43,320  40,643

        36,41,49,403  31,09,33,461

2. Current assets     

  (a)  Inventories  17   3,65,52,920  3,34,16,265

  (b)  Trade receivables 18  96,04,28,565  1,04,00,91,280

  (c)  Cash and cash equivalents 19   33,60,10,518  39,21,05,713

  (d)  Short - term loans and advances 20   1,20,43,070  63,38,360

  (e)  Other current assets 21   34,42,413  31,78,557

         1,34,84,77,486  1,47,51,30,175

         

      Total  1,71,26,26,889  1,78,60,63,636

         



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
      Note   As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

      No. Rupees Rupees

1. Revenue from operations 22  5,35,55,60,009  4,13,72,28,806 

2. Other income  23  2,34,03,474  2,15,95,363 

3. Total revenue (1+2)   5,37,89,63,483  4,15,88,24,169 

4. EXPENSES

 (a)  Purchases of stock-in-trade 24  4,83,69,72,616  3,76,59,93,180 

 (b)  Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25  32,83,370  (1,80,06,740)

 (c)  Employee benefits expense 26  10,55,46,822  6,81,58,783 

 (d)  Finance costs  27  5,96,04,636  5,35,85,190 

 (e)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 13c  3,99,62,653  2,76,59,443  

 (f )  Other expenses  28  28,41,33,507  19,82,80,060 

  Total expenses    5,32,95,03,604  4,09,56,69,917 

5. Profit before tax (3-4)   4,94,59,879  6,31,54,252 

6. Tax expense:

 (a)  Current tax    1,48,30,520  2,20,00,000 

 (b)  Tax adjustment of previous years   1,83,481  24,720 

 (c)  Deferred tax credit   (32,81,555)  (7,80,059)

 Net tax expense    1,17,32,446  2,12,44,661 

7. Profit for the year (5-6)   3,77,27,433   4,19,09,591 

8. Earnings per equity share:

 (Nominal value Rs. 100 per share)

 (a)  Basic   35 23.17 31.63

 (b)  Diluted  35 23.16 31.61
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See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements         

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
         
For S.B. BILLIMORIA & CO.  Lavanya Kumari Bojja Jayatheertha Chary      
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director & Chief Executive      
           
JITENDRA AGARWAL Vijaya Kolla  
Partner Director  

Place: New Delhi N. Amarendra Babu N. Rajesh  
Date: 30.09.2020  Company Secretary Head Finance & Accounts 
         
 Place: Tirupati   
 Date: 30.09.2020



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020
        Year ended  Year ended   

       31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

 Profit before tax    4,94,59,879  6,31,54,252   

 Adjustments For :

 Depreciation and amortisation expense   3,99,62,653  2,76,59,443   

 Loss on discard of property, plant and equipment   73,94,612 - 

 Provision for employee benefits   78,84,878  49,50,014   

 Finance costs    5,94,93,347  5,32,45,782   

 Interest income    (1,41,50,505) (1,67,75,755)  

 Operating Profit before working capital changes   15,00,44,864  13,22,33,736   

 

 Adjustments for movement in working capital:

 Decrease/(Increase) in inventories   (31,36,655)  (1,88,40,010)  

 Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables   7,96,62,715  (37,99,26,358)  

 Decrease/(Increase) in short term loans and advances   (57,04,710)  (30,42,714)  

 Decrease/(Increase) in long term loans and advances   (8,36,100)  (1,85,499)  

 Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets   (2,677)  (2,538) 

 (Decrease)/Increase in other long term liabilities   1,94,23,018  1,18,17,509   

 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables   (1,86,30,488)  1,95,11,506   

 (Decrease)/Increase in current liabilities   (7,35,49,156)  7,32,80,458   

 Cash generated from/(used in) operations   14,72,70,811  (16,51,53,908)  

 Net income tax (paid)/refund  (1,43,72,196)  (1,91,60,923)  

 Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities - (A)  13,28,98,615  (18,43,14,831)  
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2020
       Year ended  Year ended   

       31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

 Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalents  (4,00,13,704)  8,48,68,808   

 Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 

 (net of capital grant)    (8,23,08,761)  (3,93,71,856)  

 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  -  403  

 Interest received    1,38,86,649   1,74,48,916   

 Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities - (B)   (10,84,35,816)  6,29,46,271   

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

 Proceeds from issue of equity share capital   1,10,30,100   2,65,11,300   

 Share application money received   3,19,10,000   48,15,400   

 Repayment of long term borrowings   (2,78,92,328)  (3,95,60,000)  

 Net (decrease)/increase in short term borrowings   (6,17,08,139)  34,88,27,131   

 Finance costs paid    (6,08,21,154)  (4,81,65,608)  

 Dividend Paid including dividend tax   (1,30,90,177)  (1,18,19,773)  

 Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities - (C)   (12,05,71,698)  28,06,08,450   

 Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)   (9,61,08,899)  15,92,39,890   

 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   31,11,61,571   15,19,21,681   

 Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year    21,50,52,672   31,11,61,571   

     

 Cash and cash equivalents comprises:

 Cash in hand    4,638   12,473 

 Balances with banks:

  - in current accounts   21,50,48,034   21,11,49,098 

  - in deposits of original maturity of less than 3 months  -  10,00,00,000 

        21,50,52,672   31,11,61,571    

 

 Add: Bank balances not considered as Cash and cash equivalent  12,09,57,846   8,09,44,142 

 Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement  33,60,10,518   39,21,05,713 



See accompanying notes forming part of the �nancial statements         

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
         
For S.B. BILLIMORIA & CO.          
Chartered Accountants           
      
JITENDRA AGARWAL Lavanya Kumari Bojja Jayatheertha Chary 
Partner Chairman Director & Chief Executive 

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.09.2020 Vijaya Kolla   
 Director   
           
 N. Amarendra Babu  N. Rajesh 
 Company Secretary Head Finance & Accounts 
         
 Place: Tirupati   
 Date: 30.09.2020   
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“Before I came to Shreeja, I had 1 cow and used to pour milk to 
private dairies. Due to low milk rates and irregular payment, we 
were in the thought of selling that cow too, since we couldn’t 
a�ord to maintain it, that is when Shreeja pooling point was 
established in our village. With 1 cow I joined Shreeja. I got better 
rates, special cow care services and I started earning more.
Now I have 4 cows and I know I will be buying even more.
                  
We once lived in poverty. Today I own a company!’”

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Good mornings
begin with

Name: Surekha
Place: Kadepalli Village,

Gudupalli Mandal, Chittoor Dist

“I don’t just own cows.

I own a company”



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 1: Corporate information

Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 3 July, 2014 under Part IXA 

of the Companies Act, 1956. 

 

The Company had started the procurement operations in the state of Andhra Pradesh from 15 September, 2014. 

The Company procures milk directly from milk producers through Milk Pooling Points in villages of Andhra 

Pradesh and sells to Mother Dairy Fruit and Vegetable Private Limited. The Company also trades in Polypack milk, 

milk products and cattle feed. 

Note 2. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies are as follows:

a. Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / 

Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”) as applicable. MCA has clarified that the provisions of part IXA of the 

Companies Act, 1956 shall be applicable to a producer company in the manner as if the Companies Act, 1956 has 

not been repealed. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed 

in the previous year.  
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b. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates 

and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and 

the reported income and expenses during the year. The management believes that the estimates used in the 

preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these 

estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the period in which 

results are known/materialize. 

c. Cash and cash equivalents (for the purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an 

original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

d. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is 

adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 

receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 

segregated based on the available information.

e. Revenue recognition 

Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership to 

the buyers, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. 

f. Other income

Interest income on deposits is recognized on accrual basis.
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g. Property, plant and equipment (Tangible/Intangible)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The 

cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any 

import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly 

attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on 

borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is 

ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase is 

capitalized only of such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its 

previous assessed standard of performance. 

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. An 

intangible asset is recognized, where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will 

flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. The amortisation amount of intangible assets 

is allocated over the best estimate of its useful life on a straight-line basis.

The company capitalizes software costs where it is reasonably estimated that the software has an enduring useful 

life. Software is depreciated over the management’s estimate of its useful life of three years. 

h.  Capital work-in-progress

Assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental 

expenses and attributable interest.

i. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on tangible and intangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on straight line 

method as per the useful life of the assets assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the 

nature of asset, the estimated usage of assets, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacements, 

anticipated technological changes, manufactured warranties and maintenance support etc. 
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

The useful life considered for charging depreciation is as follows:

 Description   Useful life (in years)

 Plant and equipment   10

 Furniture and fixtures  15

 Computers and software  3

 Office equipment   10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lower of the lease 

period and the management estimate of the useful life of the assets.

Depreciation is provided pro-rata from the date of addition.

All assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less individually are fully depreciated in the year of capitalisation.

 

j. Inventories 

Inventories comprise raw material, finished goods and stores and spares. Inventories are valued at lower of cost 

and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost is 

determined using weighted average method. Cost includes all charges incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition. Finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads.

k. Grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will 

comply with the conditions attached to them and the grants / subsidies will be received. Government grants 

related to depreciable property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred grants which is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset, i.e., depreciation 

charge on assets procured from such grants is appropriated from Deferred Grant and recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss by way of reduced depreciation charge.



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
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Revenue government grants and subsidies are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them 

with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis and are deducted in reporting the 

related expense.

l. Employee benefits 

 

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity and compensated 

absences. 

 

a. Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contributions to provident fund and employees state insurance scheme is considered as 

defined contribution plan and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of 

contributions required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

b. Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan. Gratuity is provided based on actuarial valuation carried out at 

the balance sheet date. The incremental liability based on an actuarial valuation as per the ‘Projected Unit 

Credit’ method, as at the reporting date, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss Account. Actuarial gains 

and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

c. Short-term employee benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the services. These benefit 

includes performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve 

months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services.   

 

d. Long-term employee benefits 

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 

which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.
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m. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted to the effects of all dilutive 

potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

n. Taxes on income 

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income 

for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 

and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences; being the difference between taxable incomes and accounting 

income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax 

is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for timing 

differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent that 

reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can be 

realized. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are 

recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realize 

such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same 

governing tax laws and the Company has a legal enforceable right for such set off. 

o. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs includes interest and ancillary costs incurred. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities 

relating to construction/development of qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of such asset, are 

capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the 

statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.



SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

p. Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its property, plant and equipment to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 

exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use the 

estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal are discounted to 

their present value using a pre-discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of time value of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. 

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

q. Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that 

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 

made. Provisions (excluding employee benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined 

based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 

balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent Assets are not recognized in the 

financial statements.  Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to accounts. Contingent assets are not 

recognized in the financial statements. 

r. Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the 

lessor are recognized as operating leases. Lease rent under operating leases are recognized in the statement of 

profit and loss account on straight line basis.
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s. Material events

Material adjusting events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance.

t. Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets 

and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for 

the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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Note 3: Share Capital

                                             As at 31 March, 2020        As at 31 March, 2019 

     Number of Amount Number of Amount 
     shares Rupees shares Rupees

(a) Authorised share capital  30,00,000  30,00,00,000  20,00,000 20,00,00,000 

 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully   17,11,195   17,11,19,500   15,52,740   15,52,74,000 

 paid up share capital

 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

Refer Notes (i) to (iii) below

Notes:  

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

 The Company has issued one class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 100 each. Each member is entitled to 

one vote. Members are entitled to limited return (dividend) and bonus in accordance with Article of Association of 

the Company.   

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

                                                                                                         As at and for year ended                 As at and for year ended 

                                                                                                                        31 March 2020                                       31 March 2019 

     Number of Amount Number of Amount 

     shares  Rupees shares Rupees

 Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  15,52,740   15,52,74,000   12,39,158   12,39,15,800 

 Shares issued during the year ( Net of shares   1,58,455   1,58,45,500   3,13,582   3,13,58,200

 cancelled and reissued during the year) 

 Shares outstanding at the end of the year  17,11,195   17,11,19,500   15,52,740   15,52,74,000 

(iii) The Company is registered under Part IXA of the Companies Act, 1956 as 'Producer Company' and none of the 

members holds 5% or more of the share capital of the Company.
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       As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

      Rupees Rupees

Note 4 - Reserves and surplus

(a) General reserve

 Opening balance   8,16,65,151  5,28,59,304

 Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  2,57,49,068  2,88,05,847

 Closing balance   10,74,14,219  8,16,65,151

(b) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

 Opening Balance   1,31,03,744  1,19,50,965

 Profit for the year   3,77,27,433  4,19,09,591

 Less:

 (i) Final limited return (dividend) to members   1,08,69,180 99,13,264

  for the year ended 31 March, 2019 (Rs. 7 per share)

 (ii) Tax on limited return (dividend)  22,34,564  20,37,701

 (iii) Trasnsfered to General reserve  2,57,49,068 2,88,05,847

 Closing balance   1,19,78,365 1,31,03,744

Total (a+b)    11,93,92,584 9,47,68,895

Note 5 - Deferred Grant

 (a) Opening Balance  11,26,42,395 8,44,56,810

 (b) Add: Capital grant utilised during year (Refer Note 35)  5,07,80,643 5,17,06,655

 (c) Less: Depreciation pertaining to assets acquired from grant   2,34,43,105 2,35,21,070

 (d) Less: Assets acquired on grant discarded during the year  8,407 -

 (e) Closing balance   13,99,71,526 11,26,42,395

SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 6: Long-term borrowings 

 

 Secured

 (a) Term loan from National Dairy Development Board (NDDB)  3,91,20,000  5,86,80,000

 (b) Term loan from NDDB Dairy Services  - 83,32,328

       3,91,20,000  6,70,12,328

 Less: Current maturity of long term borrowings   1,95,60,000 2,78,92,328

 (see note 11)    1,95,60,000  3,91,20,000

 (i) Details of Security provided in respect of secured long-term borrowings is as under:

 (a) Term Loan from National Dairy Development Board

 First Charge on the entire fixed assets of the company present and future by way of hypothecation including the 

immovable properties/property, plant and equipment.

 (b) Term Loan from NDDB Dairy Services

 First Charge on the property, plant and equipment comprising data processor and milk collection centres of the 

company present and future by way of hypothecation.

 (ii) Details of terms of repayment for the long term borrowings is as under:

 (a) Term loan from National Dairy Development Board

 The company has been sanctioned the loan of Rs.9,78,00,000 for 7 years with a moratorium period on principal 

repayment of 2 years. The loan carries interest at 8.25% per annum. Loan is to be repaid in 60 equal monthly 

installments.

 (b) Term loan from NDDB Dairy Services

 The term loan was for a period of 4 years with moratorium on principal repayment of 1 year. The loan carried 

interest at 9% per annum. Loan was repayable in 36 equal monthly installments. Loan was repaid during the 

current year.
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       As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 7: Other long-term liabilities  

(a) Trade / security deposits received  6,04,49,363 4,10,26,345

        6,04,49,363 4,10,26,345 

Note 8 - Long term provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefit

 (i) For compensated absences  1,26,10,264 80,87,328

 (ii) For gratuity   88,27,725 57,06,715

       2,14,37,989 1,37,94,043

Note 9 - Short term borrowings 

(a) Unsecured

 (i) Bill discounting from banks  84,69,96,279  90,87,04,418

       84,69,96,279 90,87,04,418
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         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 10 - Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises*   20,93,824  48,20,390

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 

 small enterprises   25,18,90,360  26,77,94,282 

       25,39,84,184  27,26,14,672

*Refer note 38

Note 11 - Other current liabilities

(a) Current maturity on long term borrowings (Refer note 6)  1,95,60,000  2,78,92,328

(b) Trade / security deposits received   3,92,500  51,43,947

(c) Payable to members against cancellation   6,07,580  58,98,707

(d) Advances received from customers   31,47,263  24,08,256

(e) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings   85,28,883  98,56,690

(f ) Grant received (net of utilisation) (see Note 35)   -  6,37,58,857

(g) Unclaimed/Unpaid dividends  9,57,709  9,44,142

(h) Others: 

 (i) Payable on purchase of property, plant and equipments  82,67,254  2,13,98,227

 (ii) Statutory dues payable ( Contribution to PF, ESI, GST etc)  22,20,024  27,06,757

        4,36,81,213  14,00,07,911

Note 12 - Short term provisions

(a) Provision for employee benefits

 (i) For compensated absences   4,60,176  3,19,164

 (ii) For gratuity    2,12,516  1,12,596

(b) Provision for income tax (net of advance tax of Rs.14,866,526;  34,51,559  28,63,797

 previous year Rs.19,171,597)

        41,24,251   32,95,557 
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 14 - Deferred tax asset (net)    

   

A. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets    

 a. Provision for compensated absences and gratuity   55,64,816  47,49,142

 c. Disallowances under section 40(a)(i)(a) of the Income Tax Act  3,23,360  3,72,740  

 d. Unutilised revenue grant   -  5,19,960  

 e. Difference between book balance and tax balance of 

  property, plant and equipment   3,74,295  -

        62,62,471  56,41,842  

B. Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability    

 a. Difference between book balance and tax balance 

  of property, plant and equipment   -  26,60,926 

  

 Deferred tax asset (net)  62,62,471  29,80,916  

Note 15 - Long-term loans and advances    

(Unsecured, considered good)    

   

(a) Security deposits   27,65,999  19,29,899  

(b) Advance Income Tax (net of provision    25,90,081  26,44,124  

 for tax Rs.40,568,747; previous year Rs. 44,071,545)    

       53,56,080  45,74,023  

Note 16 - Other non-current assets   

(a) Fixed Deposit with bank*   43,320  40,643  

       43,320  40,643  

* Comprises fixed deposits under lien with commercial tax department against the VAT liability having a maturity of 

more than 12 months from the balance sheet date
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         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 17 - Inventories     

(At lower of cost and net realisable value)    

   

(a) Stock-in-trade:     

 (i) Raw milk    90,10,040  1,27,41,843  

 (ii) Cattle feed and others   1,59,26,354  1,60,48,256  

 (iii) Milk products    9,42,151  3,71,816  

       2,58,78,545  2,91,61,915  

(b)  Stores and spares  1,06,74,375  42,54,350  

       3,65,52,920  3,34,16,265  

Note 18 - Trade receivables    

(Unsecured, considered good)    

(a) Outstanding for a period more than six months from     

 the date they were due for payment  9,10,826  2,28,331  

(b) Others      95,95,17,739  1,03,98,62,949  

       96,04,28,565  1,04,00,91,280  
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

Note 19 - Cash and cash equivalents    

  

(a) Cash on hand    4,638  12,473 

(b) Balance with banks:     

 (i) In current accounts  21,50,48,034  21,11,49,098 

 (ii) In deposit accounts    

  -original maturity of less than 3 months   -  10,00,00,000 

Cash and cash equivalents as per AS 3 - Cash flow statement  21,50,52,672  31,11,61,571 

      

(c) Other bank balances    

 (i) In earmarked accounts    

  - Unpaid dividend accounts   9,57,709  9,44,142 

 (ii) In deposit accounts    

  -original maturity of more than 3 months   12,00,00,137  8,00,00,000 

        33,60,10,518  39,21,05,713 

       

Note 20 - Short - term loans and advances    

(Unsecured, considered good)    

  

(a) Advances to employees   2,47,761 1,17,855 

(b) Prepaid expenses    50,32,539  40,54,364 

(c) Advances to vendors  67,62,770  18,93,141 

(d) Security Deposits    -  2,73,000 

        1,20,43,070  63,38,360 

       

Note 21 - Other current assets    

(Unsecured, considered good)    

  

(a) Interest accrued on bank deposits   34,42,413  31,78,557 

        34,42,413  31,78,557 
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  Year Ended  Year Ended 

 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

 Rupees Rupees

Note 22 - Revenue from operations    

   

(a) Sale of products   5,35,55,60,009  4,13,72,28,806 

 (see note (i) below)   5,35,55,60,009  4,13,72,28,806 

       

(i) Sale of products comprises:    

  

 a. Traded goods   

   (i)  Raw and Pasteurised milk    4,50,71,87,593  3,60,25,62,477 

   (ii)  Polypack milk and milk products   50,40,09,903  31,89,15,045 

   (iii)  Cattle feed and others   34,43,62,513  21,57,51,284 

        5,35,55,60,009  4,13,72,28,806 

      

Note 23 - Other income    

(a) Interest income     

 (i) On deposits with banks   1,41,50,505  1,67,75,755 

       

(b) Other non-operating income    

 (i) Membership fees   8,41,354  6,24,364 

 (ii) Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back  -  5,86,039 

 (iii) Miscellaneous income  84,11,615  36,09,205 

        2,34,03,474  2,15,95,363
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 Year Ended  Year Ended 

 31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019

 Rupees Rupees

Note 24 - Purchases of stock-in-trade    

 

(a) Raw milk      4,11,11,51,799  3,30,59,97,021 

(b) Milk and milk products   40,35,16,379  24,80,96,089 

(c) Cattle feed and others    32,23,04,438  21,19,00,070 

        4,83,69,72,616  3,76,59,93,180 

    

Note 25 - Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade    

 

(a) Inventories at the beginning of the year   2,91,61,915  1,11,55,175 

(b) Inventories at the end of the year   2,58,78,545  2,91,61,915 

 Net increase/(decrease)   32,83,370  (1,80,06,740)

      

Note 26 - Employee benefits expense    

 

(a) Salaries and wages     9,30,11,070  5,88,71,469 

(b) Contribution to provident fund   48,63,270  40,78,580 

(c) Gratuity expense    35,28,882  22,67,542 

(d) Staff welfare expenses   41,43,600  29,41,192 

        10,55,46,822  6,81,58,783 
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         Year ended 31 March, Year ended 31 March,
       2020  2019 
      Rupees Rupees

Note 27 - Finance costs    
  
(a) Interest expense on:     
 (i) Term loans    41,56,550   74,42,214 
 (ii) Bill discounting    5,50,16,371  4,58,03,568 
(b) Interest on delayed payment of income tax  3,20,426   35,394 
(c) Other borrowing costs  1,11,289   77,025 
(d) Interest on service tax   -    2,26,989 
      `  5,96,04,636  5,35,85,190 
Note 28 - Other expenses    
  
(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts   3,84,07,051   2,08,90,847 
(b) Power and fuel    1,17,74,179   98,90,530 
(c) Rent      1,83,79,264   1,48,40,278 
(d) Repair and maintenance - machinery  83,44,816   84,60,699 
(e) Repair and maintenance - others   1,11,93,568   98,99,086 
(f ) Rates and taxes    11,39,504   14,76,119 
(g) Freight, forwarding and distribution expenses   11,20,36,286   8,16,15,310 
(h) Advertisement and promotion expenses   3,14,79,948   2,14,94,156 
(i) Legal and professional fees   1,28,40,597   1,04,84,845 
(j) Auditor's remuneration (see note (i) below)   17,05,560   16,34,500 
(k) Travelling and conveyance   1,13,01,928   49,62,687 
(l) Communication expenses   62,72,287   46,94,983 
(m) Printing and stationary expenses  57,73,642   20,65,250 
(n) AGM expenses    7,46,271   6,19,372 
(o) Loss on discard of property, plant and equipment  73,94,612   -   
(o) Bad debts written off   -     1,68,146 
(p) Miscellaneous expenses   53,43,994   50,83,243 
        28,41,33,507   19,82,80,060 
Note:      
(i) Auditors' remuneration comprises:    
 a. Statutory audit fee   11,55,400   10,90,000 
 b. Tax audit fee    1,96,100   1,85,000 
 c. Out of pocket expense   93,890   1,10,170 
 d. GST on above    2,60,170   2,49,330 
        17,05,560   16,34,500
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
       Year ended 31 March, Year ended 31 March,
       2020  2019
      Rupees Rupees 

Note 29 - Contingent liabilities and commitments 

(to the extent not provided for)    

 

A. Contingent Liabilities  Nil Nil

B. Commitments    

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital

 account and not provided for   2,23,07,445  4,07,13,632

Note 30:     

The Company had received share application money of Rs. 31,910,000 against which allotment has been made for                     

Rs. 31,083,400 at the Board Meeting held on 23 June, 2020 and balance Rs. 8,26,600 will be alloted in subsequent 

Board meeting.     

Note 31:     

In respect of the year ended 31 March, 2020, the directors in their meeting dated 30 September, 2020, have proposed 

a �nal dividend of Rs. 1,19,78,365(Rs.7 per share) to be paid on fully paid equity shares. The equity dividend is subject 

to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in the �nancial 

statements. The proposed equity dividend is payable to all holders of fully paid equity shares.  

   

Note 32 - Employee bene�t plans:    

 

 De�ned-Contribution Plans    

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund and Pension Fund for qualifying employees, which are 

de�ned contribution plans. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a speci�ed percentage of 

the payroll costs to fund the bene�ts.  The contributions payable by the Company are at rates speci�ed in the rules 

of the schemes.     

 The Company has recognised Rs. 48,63,270 (Previous year Rs. 40,78,580 ) for Provident Fund contribution in the 

statement of pro�t and loss.    
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 De�ned bene�t plan    

 The Company o�ers its employees de�ned-bene�t plan in the form of a gratuity scheme (a lump sum amount). 

Bene�ts under the de�ned bene�t plan is based on years of service and the employee’s compensation 

(immediately before separation). The gratuity scheme covers all regular employees. Actuarial valuation is done 

based on “Projected Unit Credit” method. Gains and losses of changed actuarial assumptions are charged to the 

Statement of Pro�t and Loss.     

      

 The following tables set out the status of de�ned bene�t scheme in respect of gratuity:

      

i.  Change in de�ned bene�t obligation  31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

      Rupees Rupees

      

 Present value of obligation at the beginning of year  58,19,311   38,36,667 

 Current service cost    22,33,289   18,16,183 

 Interest cost    4,48,087   2,84,455 

 Actuarial loss    8,47,506   1,66,904 

 Bene�t paid    (3,07,952)  (2,84,898)

 Present value of obligations at the end of the year  90,40,241   58,19,311 

      

      

ii.  Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet  31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

      Rupees Rupees

      

 Present value of de�ned bene�t obligations   90,40,241   58,19,311 

 Net liability recognised in the balance sheet    90,40,241   58,19,311 

      

 The scheme is unfunded, hence plan assets are Nil.    
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SHREEJA MAHILA MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iii.  Expense recognised in the Statement of Pro�t and Loss  31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

      Rupees Rupees

      

Current service costs    22,33,289   18,16,183 

Interest cost    4,48,087   2,84,455 

Net actuarial loss recognized during the year   8,47,506   1,66,904 

Expense recognized in the Statement of Pro�t and Loss   35,28,882   22,67,542 

      

iv.  Balance Sheet reconciliation  31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

      Rupees Rupees

      

Net liability at the beginning of the year   58,19,311   38,36,667 

Bene�t paid    (3,07,952)  (2,84,898)

Expense as above    35,28,882   22,67,542 

Net liability at the end of the year   90,40,241   58,19,311 

      

      

v.  Principal actuarial assumptions  31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

      

Discount rate   7 % p.a 7.70% p.a

Expected salary escalations  10.00% p.a. 10.00% p.a.

Expected return on plan assets  N.A N.A

Attrition rate:    

Below 25 Years   8% 8%

26 to 30 Years   7% 7%

31 to 35 Years   6% 6%

36 to 40 Years   5% 5%

41 to 45 Years   4% 4%

46 to 50 Years   3% 3%

51 to 55 Years   2% 2%

Above 56 Years   1% 1%
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Mortality table used   IALM 2012-14 IALM 2006-08

      Ultimate Ultimate

      

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date 

for the estimated term of obligation.    

The estimates of future salary increases considered, takes into account the in�ation, seniority, promotions, increments 

and other relevant factors.    

      

vi.  Experience adjustment 31 March, 2020  31 March, 2019  31 March, 2018  31 March, 2017

    Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Present value of DBO  90,40,241 58,19,311 38,36,667 21,04,034

Fair value of plan assets  -  -  -  -

Unfunded status  90,40,241 58,19,311 38,36,667 21,04,034

Loss on obligations 8,47,506 1,66,904 5,50,670 1,46,621

      

      

vii.Acturial assumptions for compensated absences;    

Acturial assumptions used for valuation of liability for compensated absences are same as (v) above. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 33 - Leasing arrangements   

   

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for o�ce premises. The lease agreement is for a period 

of �ve years with a non-cancellable period of three years ended on 31 August, 2018. The lease rental expenses of                               

Rs. 1,83,79,264 (previous year Rs. 1,48,40,279) in respect of obligation under operating leases have been recognized 

in the statement of pro�t and loss. The leases taken by the company are cancellable in nature. 

     

Note 34 - Earnings per share   

         
      Year ended 31 March,  Year ended 31 March,
Particulars  Unit  2020  2019 

Net pro�t after tax  Rupees  3,77,27,433   4,19,09,591 

Weighted average number of  equity shares outstanding  Numbers  16,28,235  13,24,938 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares Rupees  100   100 

Basic Earnings per Share  Rupees  23.17   31.63 

Equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share Numbers  16,29,107   13,25,993 

Diluted Earnings per Share Rupees  23.16   31.61 
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Note No. 35 - Details of grants

         As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

       Rupees Rupees

 Details of grants received from NDDB and its utilisation is as under:   

  

(a) Opening Balance    6,37,58,857   18,46,322 

       

(b) Grant received during year   -     15,04,19,804 

       

(c) Utilised during year     

 (i)  For capital assets:   

 - For Property, plant and equipments  5,73,28,278   4,51,59,020 

 - For assets under installation (CWIP)   -     65,47,635 

 -  Less: already utlisied in the previous year  (65,47,635)  -   

        5,07,80,643  5,17,06,655 

 (ii) For revenue expenses  6,09,416  3,68,00,614 

 Total utilisations (i)+(ii)  5,13,90,059   8,85,07,269 

       

(d) Amount repaid during the year  1,23,68,798   -   

       

(e) Balance carried forward ( a+b-c-d)   -      6,37,58,857 

Note:- 

Grant utilised for purchase of capital assets has been recorded as deferred grant and revenue grant utilised has been 

netted off with respective expense (see note 2k).
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Note No. 36 - Related party disclosures    

     

A. Name of the related party and nature of relationship    

     

Nature of Relationship Name of person   

Key Management Personnel: Mr. Jayatheertha Chary  Chief Executive 

     

B. The nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related  party are as follows:  

  

 Nature of transactions Amount (Rupees) 

  2019-20  

     

Managerial remuneration    

Mr. Jayatheertha Chary  49,28,000     

  (44,80,000)  

Figures in brackets represents previous year �gures    

     

Note No. 37 - Segment Reporting    

The disclosures as required under Accounting Standard AS-17 on Segment reporting are not required as the 

Company primarily deals in single business segment of Milk and Milk Products and operates in one geographical area.
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Note No. 38 - Disclosures required under section 22 of the micro, small and medium enterprise development 

Act, 2006 

    As at As at

    March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Micro and Small Enterprises    

(a)  Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises    

 (i) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier 20,93,824   48,20,390 

 (ii)  interest due thereon  -    -

(b)  Payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year 

 (i)  the principal amount  -    -

 (ii)  interest due thereon  -    -

(c)  Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment  

 other than the interest speci�ed under the Micro, Small and Medium -    -

 Enterprises Development Act, 2006   

(d)  Interest accrued and remaining unpaid -    -

(e)  further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such -    -

 date when the interest dues as above are actually paid   

Note No. 39   

On September 20, 2019, the Government of India vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted 

Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides domestic companies an option to pay Income tax at 

reduced rate of 22 % e�ective April 1, 2019 subject to certain conditions. The tax expenses for the year ended March 

31, 2020 have been provided for at reduced tax rate.    

Note No. 40:  

The Ministry of home a�airs vide order No.40-3/2020 dated 24.03.2020 declared the Company’s business of trading of 

milk and other diary products as an essential service. Hence, dairy industry in which the Company operates is among 

the businesses that are least impacted due to COVID-19. The Company believes that thus far, there is no signi�cant 

impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the �nancial position and performance of the Company. Further, the company is 

not expecting any signi�cant change in estimates as of now as the company is running its business and operations as 

usual without any major disruptions.    
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Note No. 41:    
Previous year's �gures have been regrouped/reclassi�ed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classi�cation/ disclosure.

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     
  
         

         
 Lavanya Kumari Bojja Jayatheertha Chary 
 Chairman Director & Chief Executive 

 Vijaya Kolla   
 Director   
         
 N. Amarendra Babu  N. Rajesh 
 Company Secretary Head Finance & Accounts 
         

 Place: Tirupati   
 Date: 30.09.2020   
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

03

“I have been a proud member of the Shreeja. Not only do I sell 
milk to the company but I have been an active associate too.
I was �rst selected as a VCG and MRG member. Later I was made 
to attend their Leadership Development Programme where I 
learnt how to feel and act in an empowered manner. Now, I have 
been elected as one of the 11 board members of the company.   
                  
Not bad for a simple housewife from a small village!’”

 The goodness of Shreeja.

From the goodness of their hearts.

Good mornings
begin with

Name: Thayaramma
Place: Atlavari Palli, Penumur Mandal, Chittoor Dist. 

“I am a housewife.

And on the

board of directors!”



“If you want something said, ask a man;
if you want something done, ask a woman.”
                                              - Margaret Thatcher.

Shreeja Mahila Milk Producer Company Limited
3rd & 4th  Floors, Bachala Towers, Plot No. 29 & 30, SGS Arts College Road,
New Indira Nagar, Tirupathi 517 501, Andhra Pradesh, India.
Ph:  +91 (0) 877 2242173, 2242727, E mail: info@shreejamilk.com
Toll Free No. : 18005322600, Web: www.shreejamilk.com


